Minutes

Herring River Executive Council (HREC)
Thursday, March 9, 2017
Truro Community Center
7 Standish Way
Truro, MA
1:00 – 3:00pm

Members Present: Helen Miranda Wilson, Dennis Murphy, Paul Wisotzky, Robert Weinstein, Dan Hoort, Rae Ann Palmer, George Price

Others Present: Margo Fenn, Tim Smith, Don Palladino, Peter Herridge, Kathy Tevyaw, Martha Craig, Christine Odiaga, Carole Ridley, Kelly Clark, Beth Chapman, Tom Flynn, Ron Gabel, Susan Baumgarten, Michael Burbank

Welcome and Introductions: Members of the HREC and other meeting participants introduced themselves.

Public Comments: Carole Ridley announced two upcoming meetings related to the Restoration Project. On March 23, 2017, Friends of Herring River (FHR) and the Wellfleet Shellfish Advisory Board (SAB) will co-sponsor a forum at the Wellfleet Council on Aging from 7:00 to 9:00 pm to present the science behind the Herring River Restoration Project's benefits for shellfish resources. On April 12, 2017 at 6:00 pm, there will be a public information meeting about the Restoration Project in the Selectmen's Meeting Room in Truro Town Hall.

Approval of Minutes: The HREC unanimously approved the minutes of the January 9, 2017 meeting.

Meeting Logistics and Coordination: The HREC members reviewed a preliminary draft set of policies to guide the HREC's operations. Members stressed their desire for openness and transparency in their procedures, and there were a number of suggestions for additions and clarifications to the draft policies. The document with the highlighted suggested changes is attached as Appendix A to these minutes.

The group discussed the process for posting agendas and meeting materials. Margo Fenn agreed to send the agenda and meeting materials to the town administrators'/managers' offices at least 48 business hours prior to the meetings, so that the full package of meeting materials can be posted on the town websites. Meeting materials will also be posted on the FHR website.

There will be a designated time for public comment during each HREC meeting. Paul Wisotzsky suggested that the following language be included on each HREC agenda: "Any discussion of an issue not on the agenda that is raised in the public comment section shall be limited to whether that issue should be placed on a future agenda." Helen Miranda Wilson noted that members of the public are welcome to talk to individual

HREC members at any time, but deliberations among HREC members can only take place during a posted meeting.

Update on Restoration Project: Don Palladino reported to the HREC that FHR and the HRRC are working to prepare permit applications, and hope to have the package of submissions ready to file later this year. The Towns of Wellfleet and Truro will be the applicants for the state, regional and local permits. The Towns and Cape Cod National Seashore will be applicants for the federal permits.

Vegetation Management Update: Herring River Restoration Committee (HRRC) members Tim Smith and Eric Derleth provided the HREC with a presentation on the HRRC's proposed approach to vegetation management. The overall goals of vegetation management are to:

- -Remove woody trees and shrubs that would impede the recovery of native salt and brackish marsh plants;
- -Avoid expansion of non-native common reed (*Phragmites*) throughout the floodplain;
 - -Encourage re-vegetation of native estuarine plants.

Tim Smith presented maps showing the existing vegetation types throughout the estuary. The plan is to remove the woody plants and shrubs prior to inundation with tidal flow, and to carefully monitor invasives, like common reed (*Phragmites*) to prevent them from spreading upstream. This work will likely be phased, as incremental tide gate openings begin.

There are a number of different ways that woody vegetation could be removed, including cutting trees by hand or heavy equipment, mowing, hand-cutting or pulling shrubs, and burning, chipping and/or removal of firewood or biofuel. The appropriate methods for removal in specific locations will be evaluated based on relative impacts and costs, as part of the Project's Adaptive Management Plan. The National Park Service (NPS) Fire Management Program will likely oversee this work, since most of the area to be managed is NPS land. Work on private land in the floodplain would happen only if landowners consent to it.

Tim Smith and Eric Derleth explained the proposed approach to managing *Phragmites*, noting that there are only limited stands of *Phragmites* in the estuary now, mostly located in the Lower Herring River basin. These stands in the lower basin will likely be killed by saline waters when the tidal restoration begins, but *Phragmites* could colonize upstream in more brackish waters. The Project will develop a robust monitoring program to identify areas vulnerable to *Phragmites* invasion, and track changes in soil and water salinity and vegetation change in these areas. If conditions warrant active management-such as when *Phragmites* is impeding re-vegetation of salt marsh grasses, or the flow of salt water, or fish passage-then management actions would be taken.

There may be other areas where *Phragmites* could be tolerated-and could provide interim benefits, such as helping with sediment deposition, or maintaining nesting areas for rare

birds. Decisions about management in these areas would be coordinated with the MA Department of Fish and Game and the Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program.

Eric Derleth presented the following written statement and recommendation on behalf of the Herring River Restoration Committee:

HRRC Vegetation Management Recommendation 3-8-17

Phragmites management is an important element of the Herring River Restoration Project (Project) because the plant is an aggressive, non-native invasive species that can rapidly displace salt marsh and other native vegetation. Re-establishing native estuarine plant communities is a primary Project objective. These native communities provide critical food and habitat for estuarine birds, animals, fish, shellfish and other wildlife. Numerous scientific studies have identified significant impairments associated with Phragmites invasion in estuarine settings, including declines in habitat quality and diversity for plants, fish and wildlife, and disruptions to biogeochemical cycles.

Tidal restoration and saltwater inundation are expected to eliminate the majority of existing stands of Phragmites in the Project area, which are located in the lower and middle basins of the Herring River system.

Phragmites has the potential to expand or colonize in upstream areas of the Project where salinity levels will be high enough to stress freshwater wetland vegetation, but too low to stop Phragmites growth, which can tolerate salinity up to approximately 20 parts per thousand.

Methods of Phragmites control that do not include the use of herbicides, such as cutting, burning, and flooding, can be used during implementation of the Project to reduce and prevent the spread of Phragmites. The efficacy of these methods will be evaluated as part of the Project's monitoring program.

The HRRC acknowledges the significant community concerns and questions about herbicide treatment of Phragmites in Herring River and that Town Meetings in Wellfleet and Truro will consider articles directing the Selectmen not to sign any permit applications for the Project that include potential herbicide use.

Therefore:

The Herring River Restoration Committee (HRRC) recommends to the Herring River Executive Council (HREC) that the permit applications seeking authorization to implement the Project not include the use of any herbicides in the Herring River Restoration Project area. These permit applications will specify other non-chemical methods of Phragmites control.

The HRRC requests that the HREC make a determination on this matter, so that the HRRC may move forward in preparing permit applications.

Helen Miranda Wilson stated that she was happy to get this recommendation from the HRRC, and noted that much research and thought had gone into it. Other HREC members concurred. Paul Wisotzky suggested that Margo Fenn poll the HREC members for their views on this matter. All members of the HREC spoke in support of the recommendation of the HRRC and therefore directed that HRRC and FHR prepare the permit applications with this proposed condition. George Price noted that while the National Park Service sometimes uses herbicides to control invasive species in other parts of Cape Cod National Seashore, this is done is under the strict supervision of the NPS's Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program. He supports the HRRC recommendation as it applies to the Herring River Project.

Ron Gabel asked if the public would have an opportunity to comment on the vegetation management plan. Margo Fenn said yes, but the process for doing that has not yet been determined.

Establishment of a Stakeholders Group: The HREC members discussed a draft proposal to establish a stakeholders group, which was distributed prior to the meeting (attached as Appendix B to these minutes). Robert Weinstein noted that the July 15, 2016 Certificate of the MA Secretary of Environmental Affairs stipulated that there will be a stakeholders group formed to represent community interests and concerns during Restoration Project implementation. This group would represent the broad interests of the community including, but not limited to, potentially affected landowners and business owners, recreational users of the Herring River flood plain, shellfishermen, and conservation and environmental advocates.

HREC members discussed the potential make-up and functions of such a group. Dennis Murphy suggested that the Wellfleet Harbormaster be included, and George Price suggested that there be a member appointed from the Cape Cod National Seashore Advisory Commission. Susan Baumgarten suggested that the group include some members "at large", perhaps on a rotating basis. Dennis Murphy suggested that members have specific terms of service, in order to insure adequate time to get educated about the Project.

Paul Wisotzky suggested that the HREC outline a more specific charge for the stakeholders group, and develop a process for interested persons to apply. He asked who would staff such a group. Helen Miranda Wilson noted that many volunteer committees in town post their own meetings and take their own minutes, and suggested that this group could do so, as well. Dan Hoort said that it would be important that members of the stakeholders group provide a two-way flow of communication between stakeholder groups they represent and the Project managers.

HREC members agreed that the stakeholders group should operate under the MA Open

Meeting law, posting agendas and minutes. George Price noted that it might be important for the group to have recorded votes, and allow for both majority and minority reports, if the group does not all agree on an issue. The HREC agreed that a subcommittee should refine the proposal and process for creating the stakeholder group, and bring it back to the HREC at its next meeting. Margo Fenn will work with Rae Ann Palmer and Dan Hoort to follow up on this.

Wrap-up and Next Steps: The HREC agreed to meet again on June 7, 2017 from 5:00 to 7:00 pm, location to be determined.

Margo Fenn will prepare draft minutes of the HREC meeting. Members asked that copies of the minutes be distributed to all members of the Wellfleet and Truro Boards of Selectmen.

George Price noted that this would be his last HREC meeting, as he is retiring from the National Park Service. He expressed his strong support for the Restoration Project, calling it one the most important legacy projects in his NPS experience. Other HREC members thanked him for his many years of service and support, and wished him well in his retirement.

The meeting was adjourned at 3:15 pm.